Shenandoah County Administrator’s

Weekly Memorandum

Weekly Message to the Members of the Board of Supervisors for December 9, 2016

Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission: Attached is the annual audit for FY 2016 for the
NSVRC.

Virginia Business Magazine: The December 2016 issue of the Virginia Business magazine featured the Le-
gal Elite for 2016. The County Attorney, Litten & Sipe, once again have been recognized. Melisa G. Michel-
sen has been selected in the Labor/Employment law specialty and Jason J. Ham has been selected in the Leg-

islative/Regulatory/Administrative specialty.

Convenience Sites: There has been some confusion over the future of the St. Luke and Route 55 citizen con-
venience sites. At this time no definitive decisions have been made about the future of either site other than
the public acknowledgement that in both cases the landowners/contract operators are not interested in extend-
ing a lease for another five year period. The subject of these sites and the future of their lease and/or owner-
ship of these other properties will be discussed at Tuesday’s board meeting in closed session. A notice was
placed in the Northern Virginia Daily by a private party concerning the St. Luke site. The ad lists your phone
numbers should you receive any phone calls about this matter.

Statement of Economic Interests: The required statements of economic interests are due January 15, 2017

for the filing period of January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. Please note that due to the due date coin-
cides with a holiday weekend. The statements, therefore, may be submitted no later than Tuesday, January

17th. Ms. Sherman has placed the forms in your boxes at the county office.

Office: (540) 459-6165
Fax: (540) 459-6168

Hours: Monday—JFriday 8:30 a.m.—5:00 p.m.

Office of County Adminisiration Mary T. Price, Cownty Adminisirator
600 N. Main Street, Suite 102 mprice@shenandoahcouniyva.us

Woodstock, VA 22664
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Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC

Certified Public Accountants

4437 Brookfield Corporate Dr., Suite 205-D
Chantilly, VA 20151

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Commissioners
Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional
Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

€rror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on.our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overali presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropri'ate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Metro: (703) 631-8940 FAX: (703) 631-8939 Toll Free 1-877-631-8940




Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission as of June 30,
2016 and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedule of changes in the Commission’s
net pension liability and related ratios, and the schedule of employer contributions on pages 4 through 7
and pages 44 through 46 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropnate operat:lonal economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or pr0v1de any assurance.

Other Infarmation o

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requiremenis, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a reqmred part of the basic
financial statements. .

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselives, and other additional proc_edures in
accordance with auditing standards generally ac'cepted in the United States of America, In our opinion,
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in dll material respects in relatlon to the
basic financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 20,
2016, on our consideration of the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

Lindorn, Anhuseg Hlht, PL

Certified Public Accountants
Chantilly, Virginia

October 20, 2016




NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

This section of the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s {Commission) annual financial
report presents our discussion and analysis of the Commission’s financial performance during the fiscal
year that ended June 30, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this
report and the Commission’s financial statements, which follow this section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

In addition to this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the report consists of govemment-
wide statements, fund financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements. The first two
statements are condensed and present a government-wide view of the Commission’s finances. Within this
view, Commission operations are categorized and reported as either governmental or business-type
activities. Governmental activities include typical planning services and administration. The
Commission’s business-type activities include operation of the Regional Tire Operations Program, a
regional tire shredding program. These government-wide statements are designed to be more corporate-
like in that all activities are consolidated into a total for the Commission,

Required Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position (Page 8) focuses on resources available for future operations. In simple
terms, this statement presents a snap shot view of the Commission’s assets, the liabilities it owes and the
net difference. The net difference is further separated. into amounts restricted for specific purposes and
unrestricted amounts. Government activitics are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Over time,
increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Commission is improving or deteriorating. The net position for governmental activities from July
2015 to June 2016 decreased by $24,530. This fluctuation is due in large part to administration of
unfunded or underfunded programs and initiatives such as the Stronger Economies Together (SET),
several economic development oriented local technical assistance projects, and the Neighborhood
Stabilization Program (NSP). ' '

The Statement of Activities (Page 9) focuses on gross and net costs of the Commission’s programs and
the extent to which such programs rely upon general revenues. This statement summarizes and simplifies
the user’s analysis to determine the extent to which programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by
general revenues. The Commission received unrestricted general revenues in the amount of $75,971 from
the Department of Housing and Community Development for annual planning district support in the
fiscal year. Member jurisdiction contributions are the only other source of unrestricted funding available
to the Commission. In fiscal year 2016 member contributions through a $0.58 per capita assessment

totaled $132,272.

The Commission incurred program expenses totaling $1,774,442 and billed for services in the amount of
$1,570,334. The difference between these totals of $204,108 represents grant matching funds required
and the support of indirect costs not covered by specific grants. Total fiscal year expenses increased
$63,051 from last fiscal year, and revenues derived from charges for services increased iri the amount of

$61,763.

Fund financial statements (Pages 10~14) focus separately on governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental fund statements follow the more traditional presentation of financial statements,
Statements for the Commission’s proprietary fund follow the governmental funds and include statements
of net position; revenue, expenditures and changes in net position; and cash flow.




The notes to the financial statements provide additional disclosure required by governmental accounting
standards and provide information to assist the reader in understanding the Commission’s financial
condition. The MD&A is intended to explain the significant changes in financial position and the
differences in operation between the current year and prior year.

Financial Analysis

Summary Statements of Net Assets

Governmental Business-Typc
Activities Activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
Cutrent Assets $ 741,467 $1,259,077 $ 955,297 $ 892,227
Capital Assets (net) 80,002 87,089 - 54,875
Note Receivable - 8,952 - -
Net Pension Asset 172,514 118,625 - -
Total Assets 993,983 1,473.743 955,297 947.102

Deferred Outflows of Resources 29.191 28231 - -

Current Liabilities 424,103 882,658 1,737 : 641
Long-Term Liabilities 41,371 46,371 . - -
Total Liabilities 465,974 929,029 . _1.737 641
Deferred Inflows of Resources 71,703 62918 — -
Invested in Capital Assets 38,131 40,718 : - - 54,875
Unrestricted 447,366 469.309 953,560 891,586
Total Net Position $_485497 §. 510,027 $_953.560  $_946.46]

The Commission realized a net position loss of $20,070 from governmental activities in fiscal year 2016,
Total current assets for governmental activities decreased by $517,610 and total current liabilities for
governmental activities decreased:by $458,555 primarily due to a decrease in (NSP) Neighborhood
Stabilization Program pass through activity. The NSP revenues derived in fiscal year 2015 exceeded
2016 by $637,904 which caused significant decreases in both accounts receivable and accounts payable
year end balances. Unlike past fiscal years when the NSP was grant funded, the NSP program operated
strictly on program income in 2016 which caused the decreased activity.

Total net positon for the business-type activities show an increase of $7,099 due to a_réduction in repair,
fuel and depreciation expense.




Summary Statements of Activities

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenues
Operating grants and
contributions $ 208,244 $ 205,132 3 - $ .
Charges for services 1,570,334 2,027,597 82,833 103,453
GASB 68 Adjustment 46,064 . - -
Interest 379 331 2.180 1.225
Total Revenues $1.825.021 $2.233.460 $_85.013 $_104.678
Expenses
General and administration $ 75,109 $ 53,371 $ 77914 3 126,392
Project costs 1.774.442 2.135.876 - -
Total expenses 1,849,551 2,189,247 77.914 126,392

Change in net position $ (24,530) § 44213 $ 7,099  $( 21,714)

Net position, beginning of
year, as restated 510,027  $_465.814  $946461  $_968,175

Change in net position ~ § ggg,ﬁ_s'_z $_510.027 $953,560 946,461

Charges for services decreased in Fiscal Year 2016 as the Commission entered into additional
local technical assistance agreements and pass through contractual services contracts. Expenses
for the business-type activities decreased by $48,478 over last year as a result of the tire shredder
being stationary at the Frederick County Landfill all year. No longer mobilizing the unit has
improved efficiency of the regional tire shredding program,

Capital Assets

Capital assefs in the governmental funds consist of building, furniture and etjmpment used in the
governmental activities of the Commission. Currently, the Commission leases ofﬁce space and so capital
assets are limited to office furniture and fixtures, computer and other equlpment

Included in proprietary ﬁmd fixed assets is a t1_re_ shredder and related equl_pment used to shred and
recycle discarded tires, including a generator, trailer and hauling vehicles.

Debt

The cost associated with preparing the office location on Kendrick Lane for occupancy included
construction and buildout which is secured by a loan with the property owner at no interest and payable at
a fixed monthly amount of $375 over the life of the lease period. This amount is paid with each lease

payment.




Economic Factors and Future Qutlook

In June of 2014, the Commission approved an alternative budgeting model that pre-programmed local
contributions to specific projects. Historically, it was understood that local match obligations for specific
grants (e.g. TDM and Rural Transportation Planning) were funded with local assessment funding, but
these investments were reflected in the Commission financials as excess funding in the Commission
Activities category and overages in the specific program category. The new budgeting model anticipates
these investments during the budget process and sets forward the actual total investment (grant and
matching funds) for a project at the beginning of the year. This budgeting model is necessary to assure
that the Commission does not over obligate its unrestricted funding and invests local funding in programs
and projects that are budgetary process pre-determined regional and local priorities. The new budgeting
model allows for increased transparency in tracking the final destination of local investments jn the
Commission.

In fiscal year 2016, the per capita assessments received from the Commission member jurisdictions were
applied to unfunded or underfunded programs in order to support Commission staff hours to administer
them and to provide matching funds. The $132,272 in addition to the $75,971 provided by our members
and the Department of Housing and Community Development respectively was utilized as follows:

Building Collaborative Communities (BCC) $ 17,155.00

Building Entreprencurial Economies (BEE) 3,791.00
Cormmunity Development Base Funding 6,418.00
Continuum of Care 8,757.00
Destination Marketing Org. (DMOs Tourism) 4,865.00
Edinburg Community Dev. Block Grant 7,510.00
Front Royal Community Dev. Block Grant 9,623.00
General Commission Administration 3,605.00
Hazard Mitigation 10,827.60
HOME Program 14,770.00
Housing Market Analysis 6,023.00
Josephine City Comprehensive Plan 1,483.00
Natural Resources Base Funding 5,716.00
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP} 27.449.00
Regional Procarement  2,293.60
Regional Tire Operations Program - - 2,029.00
Ridesmart Transportation Demand Program 41,510.00
Rural Transportation Planning = 14,063.00
Stanley Comprehensive Plan. 1,418.00
Strengthening Economies Together (SET} 15.027.00
Town of Boyce Website ‘ 1,845.00
Valley Health GIS Statistical Mapping 2.066.00

Totai: $208,243.68

Contacting the Commission’s Financial Management Staff

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission’s finances and show
the Commission’s accountability for the funds it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact the Commission’s Executive Director at 400 Kendrick Lane — Suite E,
Front Royal, Virginia 22630. (540) 636-8800.




NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2016
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 270,392 $ 226,681 $ 497073
Certificates of deposit - 697,487 697,487
Accounts receivable 450,036 31,129 481,165
Prepaid expenses 21,039 - 21,039
Net pension asset 172,514 172,514
Capital assets, net 80,002 - 80,002
Total Assets 993,983 955,297 1,949,280
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension contributions after the measurement date 29,191 - 29,191
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 365,446 1,737 367,183
Accrued leave 25463 - 25,463
Deferred revenue 33,194 - 33,194
Loan payable _ 41871 - 41,871
Total Liabilities 465974 1737 467,711
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES _ .
Net difference between projected and actual pension earnings 71,703 71,703
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets, _
net of related debt 38,131 - 38,131
Unrestricted : 447,366 053,560 1,400,926
Total Net Position $ 485,497 5 953,560 $ 1,439,057

See accompanying notes.




NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Operating

Charges for  Grantsand Governmental Business-Type

Net (Expenses) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Program Activities Expenses Services  Contributions  Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities
General government and $ 75109 § - $ 208244 § 133,135 § - % 133,135
administration
Projects 1,774,442 1,570,334 - (204,108) - (204,108)
Total Governmental Activities 1,849,551 1,570,334 208,244 (70,973) - {70,973)
Business-Type Activities
Regional Tire Operations Program 77,914 82,833 - - 4,919 4,919
Total Business-Type Activities 77,914 82,833 . - - 4,919 4,919
Total Government  $1,927465 $1,653,167 8 208,244 (70,973) 4,919 (66,054)
General revenues:
Investment earnings _ 3-79' 2,180 2,559
GASB 68 pension benefit 46,064 - - -
Change in net position " (24,530) 7,099 (17.431)
Net position at beginning of year 5_10,0_27 C 946,461 1,456,488
Net position at erid of year 8 485,497 $ 953,560 $ 1,439,057

See accompanying notes.




ASSETS

NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Note receivable

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

FUND BALANCE
Unreserved, reported in;
General fund

Reconciliation of fund balances on the balance sheet for governmental funds to nét position

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2016

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

of governmental activities on the statement of net position:

Fund balance - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities and related deferred items are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental fund balance
sheet but are reported on the government-wide stateraent of net position -
Pension contributions

Net pension asset
Net differences between projected and actual pension earnings

Compensated absences

Note payable

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes.

General
Fund

b 270,392

450,036
21,039

741,467

165,446
33,194

198,640

342,827

342,827

] 741467

$ 342,827

80,002

29,191
172,514
(71,703)
(25,463)

(41,871)

b 485,497
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

REVENUES
Grants and appropriations:
Federal grants $ 1,158279
State grants and appropriations 308,363
Local grants and appropriations 298,032
Other revenue:
Interest 379
Miscellaneous 13,904
TOTAL REVENUES 1,778,957
EXPENDITURES
Current Operating;
Contract services 910,765
Salaries 534,043
Employee benefits and payroil taxes 172,261
Advertising 76,079
Travel 29,121
Rent 21,000
Conferences and trainings 14,389
Professional fees 13,488
Regional meetings 11,557
Computer costs 11,086
Dues and memberships 10,653
Equipment rental 8,583
Office supplies and expense 8,184
Communications 1,707
Utilities 5,429
Insurance = 4,468
Office equipment and repair 3,805
Other costs 920
Debt Service
Principal 4,500
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,848,038
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {69,081)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 411,908
FUND BALANCE - End of year $ . 342827
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Government Funds $ (69,081
The net revenue of internal service finds is reported with governmental activities on the statement of activities, 7,099
Some expenses and benefits reported on the statement of activities do not tequire the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Change in GASB 68 pension benefit calenlation 46,064
Change in long-term annual leave payable 1,074
Loan proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayinent of principal on
debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has an effect on net position.
This is the amount by which debt payments exceeds debt issued. 4,500
All capital outlays to purchase capital assels are reported in governinental funds as expenditures. However, for
governmental activities those outays are shown in the Statement of Net Position and allocated over their estimated
useful lives as annual depreciation expense in the Statement of Activities, This is the amount by which captial
outlays exceed depreciation in the period. (7.087)
Change in net position reported on the Statement of Activities $ g 17,43 1!

See accompanying notes.
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2016

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Fund

Regional
Tire
Operations
Program
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 226,681
Certificates of deposit 697 487
Accounts receivable 31,129
Total Assets 953,297
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,737
Total Liabilities 1.737
NET POSITION
Unrestricted Q53,560
Total Net Position 5 953,560

See accompanying notes.




NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROFPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Fund

Regional
Tire
Operations
Program
Revenue
Charges for service 5 82,833
Total Operating Revenue 82,833
Operating Expenses
Operating costs 23,039
Depreciation 54,875
Total Operating Expenses 77914
Opéraiing Income 4,919
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest income _ 2,180
Total Non-Operating Revenues 2,180
Change in Net Position 7,094
Net Position - Beginning of Year H46,461
Net Position - End of Year 5 953,560

See accompanying notes,




NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Business Tvpe Activities - Enterprise Fund

Regional
Tire
Operations
Program
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 5 77,827
Cash payments to suppliers (21,943)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 55.884
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of certificates of deposit (1,758)
Interest income 2,180
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 422
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 56,306
Interfund Transfer
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 170,375
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year b 226,681
Reconciliation of Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Cperating Activities
Operating income (loss) 7 $ 4,919
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 34,875
Change in accounts receivable (5.006)
Change in accounts payable 1.096
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5 55,884

See accompanying notes.




NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies

The Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission (the "Commission"} is a political subdivision of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. The purpose of the Commission is to promote the orderly and efficient
development of the physical, social and economic elements of the Northerm Shenandoah Valley by
encouraging and assisting governmental subdivisions in planning for the future. The accounting policies of
the Commission conform to generally accepted accounting principals as applied to government units.

(a) Financial Statement Presentation - The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net
position and the statement of activities) report information of all of the nonfiduciary activities. The
governmental activities of the Commission are supported by intergovernmental revenues.

The government-wide Statement of Net Position reports assets as restricted when externally imposed
constraints on those assets are in effect. Internally imposed designations are not presented as restricted
net assets,

The government-wide Statement of Activities is designed to report the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues, Program revenues include charges to
customers and grants and contributions that are restncted to meeting the operatlona.l or capital

requirements of a particular function.

Separate fund financial statem'ents are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. The
governmental funds and the proprietary funds are reported on separate balance sheets and statements of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances (fund equity). The proprietary fund reporting also
includes a statement of cash flows, The accounts are organized on the basis of fund classification, each
of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted
for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses. The various funds. are grouped in the financial
statements as follows:

Governmental Funds account for the expendable financial resources, other than those accounted for
in Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds. The individual Governmental Fund of the Commission is
comprised of the General Fund, which accounts for all revenues and expenditures applicable to the
general operation of the Commission that are not accounted for in other funds,

Proprietary Funds account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The Commission’s Proprietary Fund consists of an Enterprise Fund that accounts for the
operations of the Regional Tire Operations Program. The Commission is required to follow the
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30,
1989 that do not conflict with or contradict Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. The Commission has chosen not to apply any FASB pronouncements after that date.
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continned)

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of Accounting - The Commission’s basic financial statements are presented on the accrual  basis

©

of accounting and conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Under the accrual method, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become
both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and *“available” means collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period, generally sixty days. The Commission considers grant revenue as
available when the grant expenditure is made since the expenditure is the prime factor for determining
eligibility. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

Revenue Recognition - Intergovernmental revenues, consisting primarily of Federal, state, local and
other grants for the purpose of funding specific expenditures, are recognized when earned. The
Commission recognizes a liability for funds received in excess of project expenditures.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Commission follows a deposit and investment policy in accordance

(¢)

)

with statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Accordingly, the Commission is authorized to hold
cash, checking accounts and certain investments. Cash and ¢ash equivalents include cash on hand,
amounts in checking accounts and money market instruments, all of which are insured by the Federal
Depository Insurance Corporation or are collateralized under provisions of the Virginia Security for
Public Deposits Act. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid debt investments
with a maturity of three months or less'when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable are reported at their gross value when earned as the
underlying exchange transaction occurs. Receivables are reduced by the estimated portion that is
expected to be uncollectible.. This estimate is made based on collection history and current information
regarding the credit worthiness of the debtors. When continued collection activity results in receipts of
amounts previously written off, revenue is recognized for the amount collected. Management considers
all of the receivables collectible at June 30, 2016, and no allowance for doubtful accounts has been

provided.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost for items exceeding $1, 000.
Depreciation is computed on the stralght-lme basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging
from five to thirty-nine years, Normal repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Assets that
have been purchased with grantor funds may revert to the grantor in the cvent the program is
discontinued.

(g) Accrued Leave - Comm:ssmn employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the

event of termination, the employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation leave. Sick leave and
vacation expenditures are recognized in the governmental fund to the extent it is paid during the year.

{h) Deferred Revenue - The deferred revenue balance represents funds for local grants received in the

current fiscal year and expected to be expended in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

NOTE 1 - Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) Use of Estimates - The presentation of financial statements in conformity with U. S. generally accepted

®

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources — The Commission reports deferred outflows of resources on
its statement of net position. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until the applicable period. The Commission only has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. It is the employer pension contributions made after the actuarial
measurement date. Employer contributions made after the measurement date of June 30, 2015, were

$29,191.

The Commission reports deferred inflows of resources on its statement of net position. Deferred
inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until a future period. The Commission only has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. The difference between the projected and actual
pension earnings per the actuarial report dated of June 30, 2015, of $71 703 is reported as a deferred
inflow of resources at June 30 2016,

(k) Pension — For purposes of measurmg the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and

O

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fi iduciary
net position of the Commission’s Retirement Plan and additions to/deductions from the Commission’s
Retirement Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported
by Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms,

Investments are reported at fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments that potentially expose the Commission to
concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and certificates of deposit. Cash
equivalents are maintained at high-quality financial institutions, and credit exposure is limited to any
one institution. The Commission maintains its cash in various bank deposits accounts which, at
times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Comnussmn has not experienced any losses in such

accounts.

(m} Advertising Costs - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 2 - Cash and Equivalents

State statute authorizes the Commission to invest in obligations of the U. S. Treasury, agencies, and
instrumentalities, repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit or time deposits insured by the FDIC, and
the local government investment pool. Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as
well as short-term, highly liquid investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired
by the Commission. Deposits are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. At year end, the carrying
value of the governmental activities' money market and checking account balances were $212,894 and
$57,298 respectively, and the business-type activities checking account balance was $226,681.

There is no custodial credit risk to these accounts, as the entire bank balance was covered by federal
depository insurance or collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act
(Act). Under the Act, banks holding public deposits in excess of the amounts insured by the FDIC must
pledge collateral in the amount of 50% of excess deposits to a collateral pool in the name of the State
Treasury Board. Savings and loan institutions are required to collateralize 100% of deposits in excess of
FSLIC limits. The State Treasury Board is responsible for monitoring compliance by banks and savings
and loans. Accordingly, there is no custodial risk for either of the accounts as they are fully
collateralized. In addition there is no interest rate risk as the interest rates are adjusted daily.

NOTE 3 - Certificates of Deposit

The fair values, which are the amounts reported in'the statement of net position, are based on level I inputs,
quoted market prices, if available, or estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Investments as of June 30,' 2016 stated at fair value consist of the following:
Certificates of deposit $697,487
Components of investment income include the following:

Interest $M
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)

NOTE 4 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance
July 1,2015
Governmental Activities:
Building $ 84,212
Fumiture and Equipment 59,081
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation 56,204

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net $_87.089

Business-Type Activities;

Vehicles and Equipment $814,088
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation 759.213

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, net $_54.875

NOTE 5 - Lon'g-T'em Obligations

Additions Disposals

Balance
June 30, 2016

$ - $

—1.087 -
$_(7.080) -
$ $

54.875

$(54,875) S S

$ 84,212
59,081

63,291

$_80,002

$814,088

814.088

-

The Commission leases office space in Front Royal, Virginia, under a fifteen-year lease agreement, which
expires September 30, 2026. The lease calls for periodic rent increases over the lease term. Rental expense
for all operating leases for the year énded June 30, 2016, was $21,000.

Future minimum rental payments under these leases are as follows:

Yeéars ending June 30,
2017 '
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$ 23,250
24,000
26,250
27,000
27,000

156,750

Total minimum lease payments $284,250

The Commission’s office lease included a pfovismn whereby the landlord financed certain improvements to
the office to be paid back in monthly installments of $375 over the life of the lease. The note is non-interest
bearing. The future scheduled maturities of the note payable are as follows:

Years ending June 30,
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$ 4,500
4,500
4,500
4,500
4,500

19,371

Total minimum lease payments $_41,871
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan

Pensions

The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is a multi-employer, agent
plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the Commission’s Retirement Plan and the additions to/deductions from the Commission’s Retirement
Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia
Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investment are
reported at fair value.

Plan Description

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the Commission are automatically covered by VRS
Retirement Plan upon employment. This plan is administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the
System) along with plans for other employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn
one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and their employer pay
contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on specific criteria a defined
in the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public
service, active military service, certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service,

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees — Plan 1, Plan 2, and,
Hybrid. Each of these benefit structures has a different eligibility criteria. The specific information for
each plan and the eligibility for covered groups within each plan are set out in the table below:

'RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS

PLAN 1 | PLAN 2 HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN
About Plan 1 . - | AboutPlan2 About the Hybrid Retirement Plan _
Plan 1 is a defined benefit plan. The | Plan 2 is a defined benefit The Hybrid Retirement Plan combines the features

retirement benefit is based on a
member’s age, creditable service and
average final compensation at
retirement using a formula,
Employees are eligible for Plan 1 if
their membership date is before July
1, 2010, and they were vested as of
January 1, 2013.

plan, The retirement benefit is
based on a member’s age,
creditable service and average
final compensation at
retirement using a formula.
Employees are eligible for
Plan 2 if their membership
date is on or after July 1,
2010, or their membership
date is before July 1, 2010,
and they were not vested as of
January 1, 2013. :

of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution

plan. Most members hired on or after January 1,

2014 are in this plan, as well as Plan 1 and Plan 2

members who were eligible and opted into the plan

during a special election window. (see “Eligible

Members™)

" » The defined benefit is based on a member’s age,
creditable setvice and average final conpensation
at retirement using a formula, -

* The benefit from the defined contribution
component of the plan depends on the member and
employer contributions made to the plan and the
investment performance of those contributions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continuned)

Eligible Members

Employees are in Plan 1 if their
membership date is before July 1, 2010,
and they were vested as of January 1,
2013.

Hybrid Opt-In Election

VRS non-hazardous duty covered Plan
1 members were allowed to make an
irrevocable decision to opt into the
Hybrid Retirement Plan during a special

election window held January I through

April 30, 2014,

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s
effective date for eligible Plan 1
members who opted in was July I,
2014.

If eligible deferred members returned
to work during the election window,
they were also eligible to opt into the
Hybrid Retirement Plan.

Members who were eligible for an
optional retirement plan (ORP) and had
prior service under Plan 1 were not -
eligible to elect the Hybrid Retirement
Plan and remain as Plan 1 or ORP,

Eligible Members

Employees are in Plan 2 if their
membership date is on or after July 1,
2010, or their membership date is before
July 1, 2010, and they were not vested
as of January 1, 2013.

Hybrid Opt-In Election

Eligible Plan 2 members were allowed

to make an irrevocable decision to opt

into the Hybrid Retirement Plan during
a special election window held January
1 through April 30,2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s
effective date for eligible Plan.2
members who opted in was July 1,
2014.

If eligible deferred members returned
to work during the election window,
they were also eligible to opt into the
Hybrid Retirement Plan. S

Members who were eligible for an
optional retirement plan (ORP) and
have prior service under Plan 2 were
not eligible to elect the Hybrid
Retirement Plan and remain as Plan 2
or ORP, . o

About the Hybrid Retirement Plan

(continued)
¢ In addition to the monthly benefit
payment payable from the defined
benefit plan at retirement, a member
may start receiving distributions from
the balance in the defined
contribution account, reflecting the
contributions, investment gains or
losses, and any required fees.

Eligible Members Employees are
in the Hybrid Retirement Plan if
their '

- membership date is on or after

January 1, 2014. This includes:
* Political subdivision
employees*
Meribers in Plan 1 or Plan 2 who
¢lected to opt into the plan during
the election window held January
1-April 30, 2014; the plan’s
effective date for opt-in members
was July 1,2014

*Non-Eligible Members
Some employees are not eligible to
participate in the Hybrid Retirement

_ Plan. They include: -

» Political subdivision employees
who are covered by enhanced benefits
for hazardous duty employees -

Thq'ée e:ﬁployees‘eligible for an

" optional retirement plan (ORP) must
-elect the ORP plan or the Hybrid

Retirement Plan. If these members have -
prior service under Plan 1 or Plan 2,

they are not eligible to elect the Hybrid
Retirement Plan and must select Plan 1
or Plan 2 (as applicable) or ORP.
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NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

Retirement Contributions
Employees contribute 5% of their
compensation each month to their
member contribution account
through a pre-tax salary
reduction. Some political
subdivisions elected to phase in
the required 5% member
contribution but all employees
will be paying the full 5% by July
1, 2016, Member contributions
are tax-deferred until they are
withdrawn as part of a retirement
benefit or as a refund. The
employer makes a separate
actuarially determined
contribution to VRS for all
covered employees. VRS invests
both member and employer
contributions to provide funding
for the future benefit payment.

Retirement Contributions
Employees contribute 5%
of their compensation each
month to their member
contribution account
through a pre-tax salary
reduction. Some political
subdivisions elected to
phase in the required 5%
member contribution but
all employees will be
paying the full 5% by July
1,2016.

Retirement Contributions

A member’s retirement benefit is funded through
mandatory and voluntary coniribufions made by the
member and the employer to both the defined benefit and
the defined confribution components of the plan.
Mandatory contributions are based on a percentage of the
employee’s creditable compensation and are required
from both the member and the employer. Additionally,
members may choose to make voluntary contributions to
the defined contribution component of the plan, and the
employer is required to match those voluntary
contributions according to specified percentages

Creditable Service )
Creditable service includes active
service. Members earn creditable
service for each month they are
employed in a covered position. It
also may include credit for prior -
service the member has purchased
or additional creditable service the
member was granted. A member’s
total creditable service is one of
the factors used to determine their
eligibility for retirement and to
calculate their retirement benefit,

It also may count toward eligibility |

for the health insurance credit in
retirement, if the employer offers
the health insurance credit.

Creditable Service
Same as Plan 1:

Cred!table Service

Defined Benefit Component: Under the deﬁned benefit
component of the plan, creditable service includes active
service. Members earn creditable service for each month
they are employed in a covered position. It also may
include credit for prior service the member has purchased
or additional creditable service the member was granted.
A member’s total creditable service is one of the factors
used to determine their eligibility for retirement and to
calculate their retirement benefit. It also may count
toward eligibility for the health insurance credit in
retirement, if the employer offers the health msurance
credit.

Defined Contributions Component:

Under the defined contribution component, ¢reditable
service is used to determine vesting for the employer
contnbuuon portmn of the plan,

Vesting

Vesting is the minimum length of
service a member needs to qualify
for a future retirement benefit.
Members become vested when
they have at least five years (60
months) of creditable service.
Vesting means members are
eligible to qualify for retirement if
they meet the age and service
requirements for their plan.

Vesting
Same as Plan 1.

Vestmg S '

Defineg Benefit Comgonent' Defined benefit vesting

is the minimum length of service a member needs to
qualify for a future retirement benefit. :
Members are vested under the defined benefit component
of the Hybrid Retirement Plan when they reach five years
(60 months) of creditable service. Plan 1 or Plan 2 |
members with at least five years (60 months) of creditable
service who opted into the Hybrid Retirement Plan remain
vested in the defined benefit component.
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NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

(Continued)

Vesting (continued)

Members also must be vested to
receive a full refund of their member
contribution account balance if they
leave employment and request a
refund,

Members are always 100% vested in
the contributions that they make.

Vesting (continued)

Defined Contributions Component:

Defined contribution vesting refers to the minimum
length of service a member needs to be eligible to
withdraw the employer contributions from the
defined contribution component of the plan.

Members are always 100% vested in the
coniributions that they make.

Upon retirement or leaving covered employment, a
member is eligible to withdraw a percentage of
employer contributions to the defined contribution
component of the plan, based on service.
* After two years, a member is 50% vested and
- may wittidraw 50% of employer contributions.
* After three years, a member is 75% vested and
may withdraw 75% of employer contributions.
o Afier four or more years, 2 member is 100%
vested and may withdraw 100% of employer
contributions. -

| Distribution is not required by law until age 70%.

Calculating the Benefit

The Basic Benefit is calculated
based on a formula using the
member’s average final
compensation, a retirement
multiplier and total service credit at
retirement. It is one of the benefit
payout options available to a
member at retirement.

An early retirement reduction
factor is applied to the Basic
Benefit if the member retires
with a reduced retirement benefit
or selects a benefit payout option
other than the Basic Benefit,

Calculating the Benefit .
See definition under Plan 1.

Caiculating the Benefit Defined Benefit
Component: See definition under Plan 1

Defined Contribution Component:

The benefit is based on contributions made by
the member and any matching contributions
made by the employer, plus net investment
earnings on those contributions. '

Average Final Compensation

A member’s average final
compensation is the average of the
36 consecutive months of highest
compensation as a covered
employee.

Average Final Compensation
A member’s average final
compensation is the average of
their 60 consecutive months of
highest compensation as a
covered employee.

Average Fina_l Compensation. B

Same as Plan 2. It is used in the retirement
formula for the defined benefit component of the
plan.
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NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

Service Retirement Multiplier
VRS: The retirement multiplier is a
factor used in the formula to
determine a final retirement benefit.
The retirement multiplier for non-
hazardous duty members is 1.70%.

Sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents: The retirement
multiplier for sheriffs and regional
jail superintendents is 1.85%.

Political subdivision hazardous
duty employees: The retirement
multiplier of eligible political
subdivision hazardous duty

Service Retirement Multiplier
VRS: Same as Plan 1 for service
earned, purchased or granted prior to
January 1, 2013. For non-hazardous
duty members the retirement
multiplier is 1.65% for creditable
service earned, purchased or granted
on or afier January 1, 2013.

Sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents: Same as Plan 1,

Political subdivision hazardoué
duty employees: Same as Plan 1.

Service Retirement Multiplier

Defined Benefit Component: VRS: The
retirement multiplier for the defined benefit

component is 1.00%.

For members who opted into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the
applicable multipliers for those plans will be
used to calculate the retirement benefit for
service credited in those plans.

Sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents: Not applicable.
Political subdivision hazardous duty

employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contribution Component:

Age 65,

IPolitical subdivisions hazardous daty
employees: Age 60,

Normal Social Security retirement age.

IPolitical subdivisions hazardous duty
employees: Same as Plan1.

employees other than sheriffs and Not applicable.
regional jail superintendents is S
1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the
employer.
Normal Retirement Age VRS: Normal Retirement Age VRS: Nermal Retirement Age

Defined Benefit Component: VRS
Same as Plan 2. '

olitical subdivisions hazardous duty employees:
Not applicable. - -

lﬁefmed Contribution Component:
embers are eligible to receive distributions upon
leaving employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Unreduced

Retirement Eligibility

VRS: Age 65 with at least five
years (60 months) of creditable
service or at age 50 with at least 30
years of creditable service.

Palitical subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Age 60 with at
least five years of creditable service
or age 50 with at least 25 years of
creditable setvice.

Earliest Unreduced . .
Retirement Eligibility VRS
Normal Social Security.
retirement age with at least five
years {60 months) of creditable
service or when their age and
service equal 90.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Sameas Plan 1.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility

- Defined Benefit Component:
.VRS: Normal Social Security retirement age

and have at [east five years (60 months) of
creditable service or when their age and service
equal 90.

Political subdivisions hazardous duty
- employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contribution
Component:

Members are eligible to receive distributions
upon leaving employment, subject to
restrictions.
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NOTE 6 ~ Retirement Plan (Continued)

(Continued)

Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility
VRS: Age 55 with at least five years {60
months) of creditable service or age 50 with at
least 10 years of creditable service,

Political subdivisions hazardous duty
employees: 50 with at least five years of
creditable service.

Earliest Reduced Retirement
Eligibility

VRS: Age 60 with at least five
years (60 months) of creditable
service,

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Same as Plan 1.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement
Eligibility Defined Benefit
Component: VRS: Age

Members may retire with a

reduced benefit as early

as age 60 with at least five years {60
menths) of creditable service.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Not applicable.

| Defined Contribution

Component;
Members are eligible to receive

distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in
Retirement '

The Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)
matches the first 3% increase in the Consumer
Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U)
and half of any additional increase (up to 4%)
up to a maximum COLA of 5%.

Eligibility:

For members who retire with an unreduced
benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least
20 years of creditable service, the COLA. will
go into effect on July 1 afier one full calendar
year from the retirement date,

For members who retire with a reduced
benefit and who have less than 20 years of
creditable service, the COLA will go into
sffect on July 1 after one calendar year
following the unreduced retirement

|_eligibility date

' Cdst—of—LivingAdjustment :

(COLA) in Retirement

The Cost-of-Living Adjustment
(COLA) matches the first 2%
increase in the CPI-U and half of
any additional increase (up to 2%),
for a maximum COLA of 3%.

Eligibility:

| Same as Plan 1

‘Cost-of-Living Adjustment

(COLA) in Retirement
Defined Benefit Component:

Same as Plan 2. .

Defined Contribution

Cdmppnent:
Not applicable.

Eligibility:
Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.
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NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

(Continued)

Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates:
The COLA is effective July 1 following one

full calendar year (January 1 to December
31) under any of the following
circumstances:

* The member is within five years of
qualifying for an unreduced retirement
benefit as of January 1, 2013.

* The member retires on disability.

* The member retires directly from short-
term or long-term disability under the
Virginia Sickness and Disability Program
{VSDP).

* The member Is involuntarily separated
from employment for causes other than
job performance or misconduct and is
eligible to retire under the Workforce
Transition Act or the Transitional
Benefits Program.,

» The member dies in service and the
member’s survivor or beneficiary is
eligible for 2 monthly death-in-service
benefit. The COLA will go into effect-on
July 1 following one full calendar year
(January 1 to December 31} from the date
the monthly benefit begins.

Exceptions o COLA Effective

Dates:
SameasPlan 1

Exceptions to COLA Effective
Dates:
Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.

Disability Coverage

Members who are eligible to be considered for
disability retirement and retire on disability,
the retirement multiplier is 1.7% on all service,
regardless of when it was earned, purchased or

granted.

VSDP members are subject to a one-year
waiting pericd before becoming eligible for
non-work-related disability benefits.

Disability Coverage

Members who are eligible to be
considered for disability retirement
and retire on disability, the
retirement multiplier is 1.65% on all
service, regardless of when it was
earned, purchased or granted.

VSDP members are subjecttoa
one-year waiting period before
becoming eligible for non-work
related disability benefits.

Disability Coverage Employees of
political subdivisions (including
Plan 1 and Plan2 opt-ins)
participate in the Virginia Local
Disability

Program (VLDP) unless their

- local governing body provides

and employer-paid comparable
program for its members.

Hybrid members (including Plan 1
and Plan 2 opt-ins) covered under
VLDP are subject to a one- year -
waiting period before becoming
eligible for non-work-related disability
benefits. .
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NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

(Continued)

Purchase of Prior Service Members may be
eligible to purchase service from previous
public employment, active duty military
service, an eligible period of leave or VRS
refunded service as creditable service in their
plan. Prior creditable service counts toward
vesting, eligibility for retirement and the health
insurance credit, Only active members are
eligible to purchase prior service. When buying
service, members must purchase their most
recent perfod of service first. Members also
may be eligible to purchase periods of leave
without pay: ' :

Purchase of Prior Service
Same as Plan 1.

Component:
~Not applicable.

Purchase of Prior Service
Defined Benefit Component: Same as
Plan 1, with the following exceptions:
e Hybrid Retirement Plan members are
ineligible for ported service.
® The cost for purchasing refunded
service is the higher of 4% of
creditable compensation or average
final compensation.
® Plan members have one year from their
date of hire or return from leave to
purchase all but refunded prior service at
approximate normal cost, / After that one-
year period, the rate for most categories of
service will change to actuarial cost.

Defined Contribution

Additional financial information supporting the preparation of VRS Political Subdivision Plan Schedules
(including the unmodified audit opinion on the financia! statements and required supplementary
information) is presented in the separately issued VRS 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). A copy of the 2015 VRS CAFR is publicly available through the About VRS link on the VRS
website at www.varetire.org, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a Tequest to the VRS Chief
Financial Officer, PO Box 2500 Richmond, VA 23218-2500.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms

of the pension plan;
o Number
Inactive Members or Their Beneficiaries Cw‘rently Receiving Beneﬁts 2
Inactive Members
Vested inactive members 2
Non-vested inactive members 5
Inactive members active elsewhere in VRS 3
Total Inactive Members - 10
Active Members _7
Total covered employees 19
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by § 51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the
Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward
their retirement. Prior to July 1, 2012, all or part of the 5.00% member contribution may have
been assumed by the employer. Beginning July I, 2012 new employees were required to pay the 5%
member contribution. In addition, for existing employees, employers were required to begin
making the employee pay the 5.00% member contribution, This could be phased in over a period of
up to 5 years and the employer is required to provide a salary increase equal to the amount of the

increase in the employee-paid member contribution,

The Commission’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2016 was
5.97% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from
an actoarial valuation as of Jun_e 30, 2013.

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of
benefits eamed by employee during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfimded
accrued liability. Contribution to the pension plan from the Commission were $29,191 for the year
ended June 30, 2016.

Net Pension Liability

The Commission’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. The total pension lability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determiried by an actuarial valuation performed as
of June 30, 2014, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included ‘in the
measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2015.

Actuarial Assumptions — General Employees

The total pension liability for General Employees in the Commission’s Retirement Plan was based on
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the
following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2015.

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases, including Inflation 3.5%~535%

Investment rate of return 7.0%, net of pension plan . investment expense,
including inflation* o

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience
study were found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This
would provide an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than
the assumed 7.0%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative
7.0% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded
the projected benefit payments, the long- term expected rate of return on investments was
assumed to be 7.0% to simplify preparation of pension liabilities.
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continuned)
Mortality rates: 14 % of deaths are assumed to be service related Largest 10 ~ Non-LEOS:

Pre-Retirement:

RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table Projected with Scale AA to 2020 with males set

forward 4 years and females were set back 2 years.

Post-Retirement:

RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table Projected with Scale AA to 2020 with males set

forward | year.

Post-Disablement:

RP-2000 Disability Life Mortality Table Projected to 2020 with males set back 3 years

and no provision for future mortality improvement

All Others (Non 10 Largest) — Non-LEOS: Pre-Retirement:

RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table Projected with Scale AA to 2020 with males set

forward 4 years and females were set back 2 years.

Post-Retirement:

RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table Projected with Scale AA to 2020 with males set

forward 1 year.

Post-Disablement:

RP-2000 Disability Life Mortality Table Projected to 2020 with males set back 3 years

and no provision for future mortality improvement

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2012. Changes to the

actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

Largest 10 — Non-LEOS:
- Update mortality table
Decrease in rates of service retirement
- Decrease in rates of disability retirement
- Reduce rates of salary increase by 0.25% per year

All Others (Non 10 Largest) — Non-LEOS:
- Update mortality table
- Decrease in rates of service retirement
- Decrease in rates of disability retirement
- Reduce rates of salary increase by 0.25% per year
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continned)

NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the
VRS Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at
rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS
Board of Trustees and the member rate. Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the rate
contributed by the employer for the Political Subdivision Retirement Plan will be subject to the portion
of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly. From July 1, 2018
on, participating employers are assumed to confribute 100% of the actuarially determined
contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore the Long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return |

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in” which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimats of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class arc summarized in the following table:

Arithmetic Long-

Long-Term Weighted
Target Expected Average

Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation . Rate of Return Term
U.S. Equity ' O 19.50% ' 6.46% 1.26%
Developed Non U.S Equity 16.50% 6.28% 1.04%
Emerging Market Equity 6.00% 10.00% 0.60%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.09% 0.01%
Emerging Debt 3.00% 3.51% 0.11%
Rate Sensitive Credit 4.50% 351% 0.16%
Non Rate Sensitive Credit 4.50% 5.00% 0.23%
Convertibles 3.00% 4.81% 0.14%
Public Real Estate 225% 6.12% 0.14%
Private Real Estate 12.75% 7.10% 0.91%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.41% 1.25%
Cash 1.00% -1.50% -0.02%
Total 100.00% 5.83%
Inflation 2.50%
* Expected arithmetic nominal return 833%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

* Using stochastic projection results provides an expected range of real rates of return over
various time horizons. Looking at one year results produces an expected real return of 8.33%
but also has a high standard deviation, which means there is high volatility. Over larger time
horizons the volatility declines significantly and provides a median return of 7.44%, including

expected inflation of 2.50%.

Change in the Net Pension Asset:

Total Pension { Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Asset
(2) (b) {a)-(b)
Balances at June 30, 2014 $923,827 $1,042,452 $(118,625)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 45,118 - 45,118
Interest 62,958 - 62,958
Changes of assumptions ‘ - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience (64,505) - (64,505)
Contributions — employer - 27,344 (27,344)
Contributions — employee - 22,803 (22,803)
Net investment income - 47,970 (47,970)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee (48,858) (48,858) -
contributions - ( 647) 647
Administrative expense - (10) 10
Other changes (5,287) 48,602 (53,889
Net changes o iy
Balances at June 30, 2015 $918,540 | $1,019,054 $(172,514)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes ini the Discount Rate

The following presents the net penéion liability of the Commission using the discount rate of 7%, as well as
what the Commission’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one

percentage-point lower (6%) or one percentage-point higher (8%} than the current rate:

Current

1% Decrease Discount Rats 1% Increase
(6.0%) {7.0%) (8.0%)
Commission’s Net Pension Liability _ $(48,049) $(172,514) | . $(273,309)
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 6 - Retirement Plan (Continued)

Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Commission recognized pension benefit of $17,760. At June 30,
2016, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows | Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between actual and expected experience 3 - $ 44,534
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan
investments - 27,169
Empioyer contributions subsequent to the Measurement Date 29,191 -
Total $29.191 $ 71,703

$29,191 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Commission’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension
Liability in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources

and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension e_Xpense as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2017 $(30,696)
2018 (30,696)
2019 (15,315)
2020 5,004
2021 -
Thereafter -

NOTE 7 - Fringe Benefit Allocation

Fringe benefit expense is allocated using the percentage of benefits to total salaries. The fi’inge benefit rate

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 is calculated as follows:

Fringe benefit expense $172,220
Total salaries $532,969 = 3231%

Components of fringe benefit expense for the year ended June 30, 2016 are shown below:

Health, disability and life insurance $102,800
Payroll taxes 40,229
Retirement 29,191

Total Fringe Benefits $172,220
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

NOTE 8 - Indirect Costs

Indirect costs, which support all projects, are allocated based on the ratio of the individual project's
direct salaries and fringe benefits to total direct salaries and fringe benefits. The indirect cost rate for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 was calculated as follows:

Indirect costs $232,080
Total direct salaries and fringe benefits $577,324 = 40.20%
The following indirect costs have been allocated to projects:
Salaries and fringe benefits £127,906
Rent 21,000
Meetings and conferences 10,808
Computer services 9,661
Travel 8,884
Contract services 8,581
Depreciation _ 7,087
Office supplies and expense 7,065
Communications 7,023
Insurance 6,450
Dues and subscriptions 6,148
Utilities 5,429
Repairs and maintenance 3,805
Bank fees 1,372
Miscellaneous 861
Total Indirect Costs $232,080

NOTE 9 - Compliance with Grant Provisjons -

The Commission participates in several federal financial assistance programs. Although the
Commission's grant programs have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit
Act, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of
expenditures that may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, aithough
the Commission expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 11 - Evaluation of Subsequent Events

The Commission has evaluated subsequent events through October 20, 2016, the date which the financial
staternents were available to be issued.
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Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PL.C

Certified Public Accountants

4437 Brookfield Corporate Dr., Suite 205-D
Chantilly, VA 20151

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Commissioners
Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of governmental activities,
the business-type, activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Northern Shenandoah
Valley Regional Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20, 2016

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northern Shenandoah
Valley Regional Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (intemnal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Northern
Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstaternents on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Metro: (703) 631-8940 FAX: (703) 631-8939 Toll Free 1-877-631-8940
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional
Commission’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts,
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Parpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this cormmunication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Tenkom JM%M e

Certified Public Accountants
Chantilly, Virginia

October 20, 2016
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Dunham, Aukamp & Rhodes, PLC

Certified Public Accounrants

4437 Brookdield Corporate Dr., Suite 205-D
Chantilly, VA 20151

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Commissioners
Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2016, Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs,
Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

‘Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional
Commission’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverrment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Northemn Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However our audit does not provide a legal determination of Northern Shenandoah Valley
Regional Commission’s compliance.

Mewro: (703) 631-8940 FAX: (703) 631-8939 Toll Free 1-877-631-8940
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Northem Shenandoah Valley
Regional Commission’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Northern Shenandoah
Valley Regional Commission’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
contro] over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those chargecl with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the l_imited p'urpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal confrol over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses

or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testmg
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform

Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose

Do, hihamp U, PLc

Certified Public Accountants
Chantilly, Virginia

QOctober 20, 2016
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE 30, 2016
FEDERAL
CATALOG

Major Programs FRANT NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES  SUBRECIPIENTS
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass through payment ~ City of Winchester

HOME Program 14239 § 456,711 $ 411,373
Department of Housing and Urban Development

Continuum of Care Planning Grant VA0224L3F131300 14.267 3,366

Continyum of Care Planning Grant VAQ250L3F 131400 14.267 2,483
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass through payment - Harrisonburg Redevelopment Housing Authority

Continuum of Care Planning Grant 17-VHSP-131 14,267 45,214
Other Federal Awards
Pass through payment - Virginia Department of Housing

and Community Development

Neighborhood Stabilization Program 08-NSP-04 14.228 395,566 377,849
Department of Transportation - MPO and Rural Transportation Funding
Pass through payment - Virginia Department of Transpartation (VDOT)

Federal Highway Administration Funds - MPO Funding 20,205 128,808 -

Federal Highway Administration Funds - Rural Transportation Funding 20.205 56,253 -

Department of Transportationt - MPO Funding
Pass through payment - Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT)

Federal Transit Authority Funds 46015-14 20.505 1,329

Federal Transit Authority Funds T 46016-14 20.505 48,185 -
Environmental Protection Agency
Pass through payment « Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation

Chesapeake Bay Program 66.466 19,629

Department of Homeland Security
Pass through Payment - Virginia Department of Emergency Management _
Generators Project HMGP-1903-060-018 97.039 T35

it

1158279 s 749,22

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 5

NOTE 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accomnpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards {the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of the Northern Shenandoah
Valley Regional Commission {the Commission) for the year ended June 30, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operation of the
Commission, it is not intended to and does not present the financiat position, change in net position, or cash flows of the Commission.

NOTE 2 - Subrecipients
Of the expenditures presented in the Schedule, the Commission provided awards to subrecipients as follows:

. Amount
HOME Program 14.239 Subrecipient Name - Provided
Blue Ridge Housing Network : L 3 182,459
Faithworks, Inc, 61,836
Community Housing Partners, Inc. 61,352
AIDS Response Effort 55,062
Shenandoah Alliance 49,214
Virginia Coalition to End Homelessness 1,430
5 411,373
Amount
Neighborhood Stabilization Program  14.228 Subreciplent Name Provided
Community Houzing Purtners, Ine 'ﬁ"ﬁ'm_u
5 377 840

See accompanying notes




Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Section I ~ Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting

- Material weakness(es) identified _ Yes X No

- Significant deficiency(ies) identified _ XYes _ X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? _ Yes _X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

- Material weakness(es) identified _ Yes X No

- Significant deficiency(ies) identified _ Yes _X _none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported.
in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? _ Yes X _No

Identification of major programs

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.239 Neighborhood Stabilization Program
14.267 Continuum of Care Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _ Yes X No
Section IT — Financial Statement Findings
None
Section I1I - Federal Award Findings
None
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Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2016

FINDING 2015-001
Status: Corrected

FINDING 2015-002
Status: Corrected

FINDING 2015-003
Status: Corrected
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
VARIANCE
ORIGINAL AMENDED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Grants and appropriations:
Federal grants $ 1,795979 § 1,826,333 § 1,158,279 § (668,054)
State grants and appropriations 342,520 400,940 308,363 (92,577)
Local grants and appropriations 301,496 231,849 298,032 66,183
Other revenue:
Interest - . 379 379
Miscellaneous 11,000 13,827 13,904 77
TOTAL REVENUES 2,450,995 2,472,949 1,778,957 (693,992)
EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:
Contract services 1,528,245 1,514,207 910,765 (603,442)
Salaries 497485 534,297 532,969 (1,328)
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 159,523 172,699 172,261 {438)
Advertising 95,138 87,963 76,079 (11,884)
Travel 30,000 30,000 28,121 (379
Rent 25,500 21,000 21,000 -
Meetings and conferences 15,585 22,400 25,946 3,546
Professional fees 14,000 12,000 13,488 1,488
Computer costs 11,576 10,500 11,086 586
Pues and memberships 12,250 11,800 10,442 (1,358)
Communications 8,000 7,750 7,707 (43)
Equipment rental 8,000 8,000 8,583 583
Utilities 7,500 6,000 5,429 (571)
Other costs 13,000 5,000 920 (4,080)
Office supplies and expense 5,250 3,500 4,813 1,313
Insurance 6,646 7,950 4,468 (3,482)
Office equipment and repair 3,500 3,000 2,990 {10)
Postage and shipping 1,000 . 850 830 (20)
Information Technology Services 1,500 1,100 815 (285)
Subscriptions/Newspapers 500 400 211 (189)
Printing - 250 - S -
Capital purchases 2,500 2,500 2,541 41
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,446,948 2,462,916 1,842,464 (620,452)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES § 4,047 $ 10,033 (63,507 § (1,314,444)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 327,409

FUND BALANCE - End of year

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Government Funds
Effect of GASB 68 pension benefit not budgeted

Effect of depreciation not budgeted

Change in net position reported on the Statement of Activity

See accompanying notes.

s 2690

$  (63,507)
46,064
(7,087)

$  (24,530)
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COMMISSION'S NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS
2016 2015

Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 45,118 § 49,766
Interest on total pension Hability 62,958 58,757
Differences between expected and actual experience (64,505) .
Changes in assumptions -
Changes in benefits - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (48,858) {48,166)
Net change in total pension liability (5,287) 60,357
Total pension liability - beginning 923,827 863,470
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 918,540 § 923,827
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 5 27,344 % 40,387
Contributions - employee 22,803 23,594
Net investment income 47,970 141,207
Benefits payments (48,858) (48,166)
Administrative expense (647) (741)
Other _ (10) 7
Net change in plan fiduciary net position : 48,602 156,288
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,042,452 886,164
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 1,091,054 $ 1,042,452
Commission's Net pension asset - ending (a)-(b) $ (172,519 $ - (118,625)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

118.78% 112.84%

Pension asset

Covered - employee payroll $ 5 10,62_1 $ 483,500

Commission's net pension asset as percentage of

covered-employee payroll -33.79% -24.53%

See accompanying notes 46




NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 THROUGH 2016

Contributions
in Relation to Contributions
Contractually Contractually Contribution ~ Employer's asa % of
Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered
Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Date (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
2006 $ 30484 § 29,191 § 1,293 $ 510,621 5.72%
2015 $ 28865 § 27,344 % 1,521 § 483,500 5.66%
2014 $§ 33878 $ 39567 § (5,689) § 400,449 9.88%
2013 § 36,749 $ 38205 § (1,456) §$ 434,387 8.80%
2012 § 44259 § 49415 ¢ (5,156) $ 402,718 12.27%
2011 $ 43599 § 47,121 % (3,522) $ 396,718 11.88%
2010 $ 43916 $ 44721 § (805) § 445,850 10.03%
2009 § 41,178 § 43,860 § (2.682) $§ 418,050 10.49%
2008 $ 51,967 $ 49471 $ 2,496 $ 328,700 15.05%
2007 $ 36,372 % 43,028 § (6,656) $ 230,056 18.70%

See accompanying notes,
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NORTHERN SHENANDOAH VALLEY REGIONAL COMMISSION

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - Change of Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the prior
actuarial valuation. The 2014 valuation includes Hybrid Retirement Plan members for the first time. The
hybrid plan applies to most new employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 and not covered by
enhanced hazardous duty benefits. Because this was a new benefit and the number of participants was
relatively small, the impact on the liabilities as of the measurement date of June 30, 2015 are not

material.

NOTE 2 - Changes of Assumptions

The following changes in actuarial assumptions were made effective June 30, 2013 based on the most
recent experience study of the System for the four- year period ending June 30, 2012:

Largest 10 —Non-LEOS:
- Update mortality table _
- Decrease in rates of service retirement
Decrease in rates of disability retirement
Reduce rates of salary increase by 0.25% per year.

Largest 10 -LEOS:
- Update mortality table
-  Decrease in male rates of disability

All Others (Non 10 Largest) — Non-LEOS:
- Update mortality table '
Decrease in rates of service retirement
- Decrease in rates of disability retirement
- Reduce rates of salary increase by 0.25% per year

All Others (Non 10 Largest) — LEOS:
- Update mortality table
- Adjustments to rates of service retirement for females
- Increase in rates of withdrawal
- Decrease in male and female rates of disability
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ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE 2016
RESOLUTION oo 37 0
Hon. F. Bradford Stillman ...cccceeeee. 38 : %{M

The McCammon Group, Norfelk NG e = e e
APPELLIATELAW ..o 37 = =
George A. Somerville .......ccuneern. 40 ===l o~ ==

Harman Claytor Corngan & Wellman Richmond

BANKRUPTICY/
CREDITORS RIGETS ... 7
John D. McIntyre......occeeciessninesens 42

Wilson & Mcintyre PLLC, Norfolk
RITSITESS LAW L vrenrereeene: 39

Albert H. Poole.. A4

Poole Brooke Plumlee PC, Virginia Beach

CIVIL LITIGATION.............41

Brett A. Spain ~46
Willcox & Savage PC, Norfolk

CRIMINAL LAW .. 87

Dickson J. Young .
_ Whitestone Young PX PC, Fafrfax o

CONSTRUCTION....cccreenn 45

D. Stan Barnhill....c.ccricocecenisenaiinenees 48
Woods Rogers PLC, Roanoke

CORPORATE COANNSEL .47

Randal S. Noe.....cccceersvsrrnensamcscsanns 50
Norfolk Southern Corp., Norfolk

.ENVIRONMENTAL LAW .49
Timothy Old Trant Il ..cccevemrecicicsnaens 54
Kaufman & Canoles PC, Newport News and
Williamsburg

FAMILY LAW/

DOMESTIC RELATTONS......51
Sherry A. Fox 56
ThompsonMcMullan PC, Rlchmond
HEALTH LAW 53
Peter Lipresti 58
Peter Lipresti PC, Farn‘ax
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY .....55
Robert P. Henley lll......cccccvvvancnanens 60

Hirschler Fleischer, Richmond

LABOR/EMPLOYMENT .....57

Sarah Aiman Belger......c-eseeimesirenans 62
McGwreWoods LLF, Tysons Corner

LEGAL SERVICES!
PRO BONO.....ciieen, 61

Tameeka Montgomery Williams..... 64
_ Legal A|d Soaety of Eastern 1 Virginia, Norfolk

LEGISLATIVE/
REGULATORY/
ADMINISTRATIVE.......... 61
Meade A. Spotts 66
Spotts Fain PC, Richmond
REAL Z5TATE/LAND USE
Susan M. Pesner ..c.eeemessssssssoniasens 68
Pesner Kawamoto PLC, Tysons Corner
TAXES/ESTATES/TRUSTS/
FLDER LAW .oooeeccncecnens 65
James L. Boring .c..vcermsaniensaiessnennas 70
Beoring & Pilger PC, Vienna
YOUNG LAWYERS ... 69
Faith A. Alejandro.......cccecveresurenes 72

Sands Anderson PC, Richmond
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Joshua F.P. Long
Woods Rogers PLC
Roanoke

Trina A. Longo
Schiffsin & Longo PC
Mclean

Jason E. Manning
Troutman Sanders LLP
Virginia Beach

Dana D. McDaniel
Spotts Fain PC
Richmond

Craig L. Mytelka
Williams Mullen
Virginia Beach

Stephen Edward Neona
Kaufman & Canoles
Norfolk

Jeffrey Thomas Perez
Intrexon Corp.
Blacksburg

Antigone Peyton
Cleudigy Law PLLC
McLean

Janet P. Peyton
McGuireWoods LLP
Richmond

Todd A, Pilot
The Trademark Institute
Alexandria

Robert F. Powers
McClanahan Powers PLLC
Vienna

William R. Poynter
Kaleo Legal
Virginia Beach

Scott Lee Reichle
Patten, Wornom, Hatten & Diamonstein LC
Newport News

Brian C. Riopelle
McGuireWoods LLP
Richmond

Robert E. Smartschan
Kaufman & Canoles
Nerfolk

Stephen Evans Story
Kaufman & Canoles
Norfolk

Anthony Tacconi
Intellectual Property and
Commercial Law Group PLC
Glen Allen

Ralph M. Tener
MeCandlish Lillard
Fairfax

Davld lan Tenzer
Glenn Feldmann Darby & Goodlatte
Roanoke

lan Donald Titley
Leading-Edge Law Group PLC
Richmond

Jane Dandridge Tucker
Vandeventer Black LLP
Norfolk

Robert M. Tyler
University of Virginia
Charlottesville

Peter Joseph Van Bergen
Peter J. Van Bergen, Patent
Attoney
Williamsburg

Mark W. Wasserman
Reed Smith LLP
Meclean

Edward T. White
LeClairRyan
Richmond

Peter Willsey
Cooley LLP
Washington, D.C.

LaBor/
EmPLOYMENT

Thomas R. Bagby
Woods Regers PLC
Roanoke

Robert J. Barry
Kaufman & Canoles
Norfolk

Sarah A. Belger
McGuireWoods LLP
Tysons

Lisa A. Bertini
Bertini Law PC
Virginia Beach

Anne Graham Bibeau
Vandeventer Black LLP
Norfolk

Susan R. Blake
Dominion Enterprises
Norfoll

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft
Charlson Bredehoft
Cohen & Brown PC

Reston

John M. Bredehoft
Kaufman & Cancles
Norfolk

Dean Taylor Buckius
Vandeventer Black LLP
Norfolk

Douglas R. Burtch
Burtch Law PLLC
Richmond

David C, Burton
Williams Mullen
Virginia Beach

Jeremy D. Capps
Harman Claytor
Corrigan & Wellman
Richmond

Yictor O. Cardwell
Woods Rogers PLC
Roanoke

Jeremy E. Carroll
Glenn Feldmann Darby &
Goodlatte
Roanoke

Brian F. Chandler
Protorae Law PLLC
Tysons

David E. Constine I
Troutman Sanders LLP
Richmond

James K. Cowan Jr.
CowanPerry PC
Roanoke/Blacksburg

Craig J. Curwood
Curwood Law Firm
Richmond

Kimberly W. Daniel
Hancock Daniel Johnson &
Nagle PC
Glen Allen

Lauren R. Darden
Wharton Aldhizer & Weaver PLC
Harrisonburg

R. Mark Dare
IslerDare PC
Tysons Corner

John E. Davidson
Davidson & Kitzmann PLC
Charlottesville

C. Michae! DeCamps
Sands Anderson PC
Richmond

Smith

Pachter

Serving the International and Domestic Public Contracts and
Construction Industries for more than Twenty-Five Years.

Congratulations to:
Richard Smith

Alternative Dispute Resolution

Brian Vella
Construction

for their recognition in Virginia Business

Legal Elite for 2016

8000 Towers Crescent Drive, Suite 900, Tysons Corner, VA 22182
{703) 847-6300 www.smithpachter.com

McWhorter

FLC

Attorneys At Law

www.VirginiaBusiness.com
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Karen A. Doner
Roth Doner Jackson PLC
MclLean

Barry J. Dorans
Wolcott Rivers Gates Attorneys at Law
Virginia Beach

J. Fielding Douthat Jr.
LeClairRyan
Richmond

Elizabeth M. Ebanks
Ogletree Deakins
Richmond

Karen $. Elliott
Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott LLC
Richmond

William R. Fitzpatrick
Sevila, Saunders, Huddleston & White PC
Leesburg

William M. Furr
Willcox & Savage PC
Norfolk

Sean M, Gibbons
Roth Doner Jackson Gibbons Condlin PLC
Richmond

David J. Gogal
Blankingship & Keith PC
Fairfax

Betty 5.W. Graumlich
Reed Smith LLP
Richmond

Robyn Hylton Hansen
Jones Blechman Woltz & Kelly PC
Newport News

W. David Harless
Christian & Barton LLP
Richmond

Richard Franklin Hawkins Il
The Hawkins Law Firm PC
Richmond

Elaine I. Hogan
Crenshaw, Ware & Martin PLC
Norfolk

Edward Lee Isler
IslerDare PC
Tvsons Corner

Christopher Ryan Jones
The Jones Firm PLC
Chesapeake

Stephanie P. Karn
Kapfan Voekler Cunningham & Frank PLC
Richmond

Scott William Kezman
Kauftnan & Canoles
Norfolk

Arlene Faith Klinedinst
Vandeventer Black LLP
Norfolk

Paul G. Kleckenbrink
Gentry Locke
Roanoke

David A. Kushner
Willcox & Savage PC
Norfolk

Todd A. Leeson
Gentry Locke
Roanoke

Declan C. Leonard
Berenzweig Leonard LLP
Mclean

Nancy S. Lester
QOgletree Deakins
Richmeond

Ross E. Longood
CarMax
Richmond

Vijay K. Mago
O'Hagan Meyer
Richmond

Kevin Martingayle
Bischoff Martingayle
Virginia Beach

Richard H. Matthews
Pender & Coward PC
Virginia Beach

James V. Meath
Williams Mullen
Richmond

Melisa G. Michelsen
Litten & Sipe LLP
Harrisonburg

Susan Childers North
LeClairRyan
Williamsburg

Samantha S. Otero
MeCandlish Holton
Richmond

W, David Paxton
Gentry Locke
Roanoke

Sara B. Rafal
Williams Mullen
Norfolk

Timothy M. Richardson
Pocle Brooke Plumlee PC
Virginia Beach

Gregory Branch Robertson
Hunton & Williams LLP
Richmend

Jimmy F. Robinson Jr,
Ogletree Deakins
Richmond

R. Barry Rowell
Valverde and Rowell PC
Virginia Beach

Marguerite R. Rita Ruby
Hunton & Williams LLP
Richmond

Tim Schulte
Shelley Cupp Schulte PC
Richmond

Andrew P. Sherrod
Hirschler Fleischer
Richmond

Norman A. Thomas, PLLC

Appellate Law Practice in Virginia

Nerrman Thomas is recognized by

Virginia Business as oneof Virginias
"Legal Elite” winners in Appeliate Law.

1015 East Main Street, Lower Level

Richmond, VA 23219

(B04) 303-9538 | normanthomastaw.com

James H. Shoemaker Jr.
Patten, Wornom, Hatten &
Diamonstein LC
Newport News

David R. Simonsen Jr.
Attorney at Law
Henrico

Kristina Keech Spitler
Vanderpool, Frostick &
Nishanian PC
Manassas

Thomas E. Stralka
Strelka Law Office PC
Roanoke

Neil . Talegaonkar
ThompsonMcMullan PC
Richmand

Thamer E. “Chip” Temple Il
DurretteCrump PLC
Richmond

King F. Tower
Woods Rogers PLC

Roanoke

Thomas E. Ullrich
Wharton Aldhizer & Weaver PLC
Harrisonburg

Cathleen Patricia Welsh
Lenhart Pettit
Harrisonburg

Culin, Sharp, Autry & Day PLC congratulates James Autry and Ju!
designations. Jim provides skillful strategic planning for closely held businesses, mastering the nuances
of their needs for operations, transactions and litigation. Julie's business background pravides special
insight in litigated and mediated divorce cases In which business assets are at issue. Both attorneys
are AV-rated by Martindale-Hubbell and are named as Top Lawyers by Northern Virginia Magazine,
among other honors, CSA&D is a general practice firm
providing excellent representation to meet the perscnal
and professional legal needs of closely held businesses
and the people who own and operate them.

( 'SA@ ! Culin Sharp
| AutrysDaye.c.

www.csadlawyers.com

ie Hottle Day on their Legal Elite

www.VirginiaBusiness.com
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Burt Helgaas Whitt
Kaufman & Canoles
Norfolk

Laura D. Windsor
Williams Mullen
Richmond

Thomas M. Winn i
Woods Rogers PLC
Roanoke

LecAaL SErRvICES/
Pro Bono

Tara L. Casey
University of Richmend School
of Law
Richmond

Joseph Benjamin Dailey
Law Office of Joseph B. Dailey
Fairfax

Rita Poindexter Davis
Office of the Attorney General
Richmond

Stephen E. Dickinson
Central Virignia Legal Aid
Society Inc.
Richmond

Jennifer Fulmer
Legal Services of Northern
Virginia
Fairfax
Michae! William Graff Jr.
McGuireWoods LLP
Tysons

Laura Geringer Gross
Kaufman & Canoles
Norfoik

Nicole J. Harrell
Kaufman & Canoles
Norfolk

George H. Hettrick
» Hunton & Williams LLP
Richmond

Timothy J. Lyden
Hogan Lovells US LLP
Melean

Nora Mahoney
Legal Services of Northern
Virginia
Fairfax
David S. Mercer
MercerTrigiani
Alexandria

Wiley F. Mitchell Jr.
Willcox & Savage PC
Norfolk

G. Andrew Nea Jr.
Williams Mullen
Richmond

iStaphen Atherton Northup
Troutman Sanders ELP
Richmond

a L IR

-

Robert Lee O’'Donnell
- Vandeventer Black LLP
Norfolk

Carrie Hallberg O’'Malley
Hirschler Fleischer
Fredericksburg

Marceilinus Louis M.B. Slag
Legal Aid Justice Center
Richmond

Joley L. Steffens
ThompsonMcMullan PC
Richmond

Rebert Joseph Stoney
Blankingship & Keith PC
Fairfax

Christine F. Underwood
Woods Rogers PLC
Roanoke

James L. Weinberg
Hirschler Fleischer
Richmond

John E. Whitfield
Blue Ridge Legal Services Inc.
Harrisonburg

Tameeka Montgomery
Williams
Legal Aid Society
of Eastern Virginia
Norfolk

LEGISLATIVE/
REGULATORY/
ADMINISTRATIVE

Alan D. Albert
LeClairRyan
Norfolk

Lars Eric Anderson
QOdin, Feldman & Pittteman PC
Reston

The Hon. Ralph L. “Bill”
Axselle Jr.
Williams Muilen
Richmond

John K. Byrum Jr.
Woods Rogers PLC
Richmond

John F. Cafferky
Blankingship & Keith PC
Fairfax

Nicole . Cheuk
Sands Anderson PC
Richmond

Leonard L. "Len” Fleisig
Willcox & Savage PC
Neorfolk

Ralph M. Goldstein
Jones Blechman Woltz & Kelly
PC

Newport News

Brian R. Greene
GreeneHurlocker PLC
Richmond

James Patrick Guy I]
LeClairRyan
Glen Allen

Jason J. Ham
Litten & Sipe LLP
Harrisonburg |

Michele S. Harrington
Hogan Lovells US LLP
Melean |

Frederick P. Helm
Kemper Consulting
Richmond

Devon E. Hewitt
Protorae Law PLLC
Tysons

W. Scatt Johnson
Hancock Daniel Johnson &
Nagle PC
Glen Allen

John-Garrett Kemper
Kemper Consulting
Norfolk

Anne Leigh Kerr
Kerr Government Strategies
Richmond

Bradford A. King
Sands Anderson PC
Richmond

Thomas A. Lisk
Eckert Seamans Cherin &
Mellott LLC
Richmond

Alexander M. Macaulay
Macaulay & Jamerson PC,
Attorneys at Law
Richmond

Courtney M. Malveaux
Jackson Lewis PC
Richmond

Anthony Mazzeo
Vandeventer Black LLP
Norfolk

Lauren Danielle Mehosky
Social Security Administration
Norfolk

Dale G. Mullen
McGuireWoods LLP
Richmond

Edward A. Mullen
Reed Smith LLP
Richmond

Ruth E. Nathanson
GreeneHurlocker PLC
Richmond

Eric M. Page
Eckert Seamans Cherin &
Mellott LLC
Richmond

Jeffrey S. Palmore
Reed Smith LLP
Richmond

Katie W. Payne
Williams Mullen
Richmond

Bernard A. Pishko
Norfolk City
Attorney’s Office
Norfolk

www.VirginiaBusiness.com
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The health law solution.

Hancock, Dandel, Johnson & Nagle, P.C.
hdin.com | 866.287.8804
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